


http://www.colfax-ca.gov/






City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes July 27, 2017 
 

Jim Bowers, 205 Pine Court 
 Mr. Bowers commented Culver Street needs to be repaved; the sidewalks need to 

be repaired; and none of it is ADA compliant.  In addition to the safety and 
nuisance issues, the bad road impacts the price of houses.  He asked if it is true the 
City has $200,000 available for potentially repaving the street. 

Mayor Harvey explained the City was awarded a CDBG grant several years ago with very fixed 
parameters.  Those funds are essentially locked up. 
Council assured Mr. Bowers that improving all the roads in Colfax is a high priority for the City, 
but the costs are significant.  Staff is in the process of creating a Pavement Management Plan 
which will allow the City to forecast expenses.  Acting City Manager Heathcock stated the total 
costs to repave the City are well in excess of $7 million. 

 

Council directed staff to schedule a public workshop regarding pavement management in the 
future. 

 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ɀ All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Mendoza 
 Councilmember Mendoza thanked Mr. Bowers for bringing up the road condition 

issues. 
 She reported the first group of officials journeyed to Alta to visit the new Chinese 

Memorial.  Seventy elected officials and descendants of Chinese rail workers rode a 
bus to the memorial and stopped in Colfax at the Red Frog.  Councilmember 
Mendoza hopes someday to have a stop downtown for folks to also visit a Chinese 
museum. 

Councilmember Stockwin 
 Councilmember Stockwin reminded the public that Measure M would have given 

the City $250,000 yearly to improve roads for 30 years, but 40% of the people who 
voted said no and now the City must find funds elsewhere. 

 He gave a report from the Placer County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
Board meeting. 

 He thanked everyone who got the town looking great for the 3rd of July event. 
Councilmember Douglass 

 Councilmember Douglass reported he has represented the City at several events 
including the Project Go Board meeting, Soroptomist Club installation, economic 
development meetings, Sierra Vista Community Center monthly meeting, VFW 
Pancake Breakfast, and the Coffee with Supervisor Montgomery. 

 He met with the Placer County Employment Director who is very interested in 
supporting Colfax with any projects which would help with unemployment issues. 

Mayor Pro Tem Hesch 
 Mayor Pro Tem Hesch thanked the Public Works crew for their efforts to make the 

City look great for the 3rd of July. 
 He may miss the August 23, 2017 Council meeting. 
 He reported from the Placer County Transportation Planning Agency, the funding 

agents for roads in Placer County.  The Executive Director, Celia McAdams has 
announced her retirement – the City owes her a debt of gratitude as she has been a 
great supporter of Colfax. 

3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes July 27, 2017 
 

 The Lioness Club has indicated they would like to donate $6000 towards a project.  
He requested Council give input for projects and offered to provide suggestions for 
projects and	follow	up	with	the	Lioness’. 

Mayor Harvey 
 Mayor Harvey stated the 3rd of July was a great event and the town looked 

excellent. 
 He said the Volunteer Fire Department breakfast was great. 
 Mayor Harvey spoke about the California Public Utility Commission (CPUC) and 

changes they are making which will positively impact the Pioneer Community 
Energy Authority which has just been established by the County and the City.  He 
recommended the public attend the CPUC hearing scheduled for August 15 in 
Stockton. 
 

5B. City Operations ɀ City Staff 
Acting City Manager Heathcock 

 Staff will meet with the Developer of the Maidu property about terms for the 
construction of the roundabout. 

Jim Bowers and Karen Furry of 23635 Tree Farm Road commented about the roundabout. 
Council suggested the roundabout could be included in the next workshop regarding 
roads and pavement. 

 Demolition of the California Fruit Growers Association building is back on track. 
 

5C. Additional Reports ɀ Agency Partners 
Frank Klein, President Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce 

 Mr. Klein reported the Executive Director of the Chamber, Jenny Duncan has 
retired. 

 The next Chamber Mixer will be August 22, 2017 at Sierra Storage beginning at 
5:30PM. 

 He congratulated Kristi Brothers for the great 3rd of July event, the Placer Sierra 
Railroad Heritage Society and Mayor Pro Tem Hesch for the completion of the 
caboose and thanked Hansen Brothers for donating the use of their land for the 
fireworks. 

 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A. Appointment of Interim City Manager 

Staff Presentation:  Mick Cabral, City Attorney  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 30-2017 appointing Wes Heathcock as Interim 
City Manager and authorizing the Mayor to execute an Employment Agreement with 
him. 

City Attorney Cabral stated the proposed agreement between Wes Heathcock and the City of 
Colfax would appoint him as Interim City Manager for a six month period of time at which point 
the Council will meet again to continue the contract or allow Mr. Heathcock to step back into his 
current role as Community Services Director.  The previous City Manager was released effective 
July 13, 2017.  As required by new state mandates Mr.	Heathcock’s	salary	must	be	reported.	He	
will earn $100,000/year with benefits exactly the same as other employees. 
 





LorraineCassidy
Typewritten Text
X











August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

CITY OF COLFAX 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR THE SIERRA OAKS ESTATES/VILLAGE OAKS PROJECT 

 

 

1. PARTIES AND DATE 

 

This Agreement is made this ___ day of __________, 2017 by and between the City of 

Colfax, a municipal corporation and California general law city (the “City”), and Pinetop 

Properties, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company (the “Owner”).  

 

2. RECITALS 

 

 2.1 On December 14, 2016, the City adopted its Resolution 48-2016 whereby 

it approved the Sierra Oaks Estates and Village Oaks Apartments development projects 

which include 34 lots for a single family residential subdivision and five lots for 76 

multifamily apartments all located within the boundaries of the approximate 34 acre site 

consisting of Parcels 1, 2, 3 and 4 at Book 35 of Parcel Maps, Page 103 Placer County 

Records (the “Project”). 

 

 2.2 The Project approvals include a Vesting Tentative Subdivision map, 

design review permit, sign permit and a lot line adjustment, all of which are subject to 

conditions of approval, and mitigated negative declaration.  

 

 2.3 Condition of Approval 65b provides that the extent of sewer 

improvements are to be established by the City, that the Owner is responsible for 

constructing all sewer improvements the City establishes, that the City shall reimburse 

the Owner for any costs associated with sewer improvements that are not the direct result 

of the subdivision, and that the City and Owner shall enter into a reimbursement 

agreement defining the scope of the improvements, estimated costs and terms of 

reimbursement for the design and construction of those improvements.  

 

 2.4  One of the City’s primary sewer mains runs through the Project area.  That 

sewer main has insufficient capacity to serve the Project in addition to the other areas of 

the City it serves and needs to be upsized.   

 

 2.5 In accordance with Project Condition of Approval 65b, the scope of 

Project sewer improvements is the engineering, design and construction required to 

upsize the existing sewer system to a 15 inch line between manholes 18 and 23 including 

but not limited to constructing new sewer pipelines, new sewer manholes, retrofitting 

existing manholes, making bypass connections, bypass pumping, parallel sewer mains, 

abandoning existing facilities, acquiring any necessary easements or rights of way, and 

any other work necessary pursuant to engineering plans approved by the City (the “Sewer 

Improvements”).  The location, nature and route of the Sewer Improvements are 

generally depicted on the 15” Sanitary Sewer Bypass Plan & Profile for Village Oaks and 

Sierra Oaks Estates attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement, consisting of pages C10.1, 









August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

 3.5 Indemnity and Insurance 

 

(a) Owner shall, at its sole cost and expense, defend, indemnify and 

hold City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents free and harmless from 

any and all liability from loss, damage, or injury to or death of persons or property in any 

manner arising out of or incident to Owner’s performance of this Agreement, provided 

that such liability, loss, damage, injury or death result from the negligence of Owner or 

Owner’s agents.  The obligations under this Section 5 shall not include liability or the 

defense and indemnity of the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents 

for any active negligence or willful misconduct pursuant to CC §2782(b)(2).   

 

(b) Owner shall require all persons doing work on the Sewer 

Improvements, including its contractors and subcontractors, to obtain and maintain 

insurance of the types and in the amounts described below in a form and with carriers 

satisfactory to City. 

  

   i.  Commercial General Liability Insurance.  Occurrence basis 

commercial general liability insurance or equivalent form with a limit of not less than 

$1,000,000.00 (or as otherwise approved, in writing, by the City) per occurrence shall be 

maintained.  If such insurance contains a general limit, that limit shall apply separately to 

this Agreement or be no less than two times the occurrence limit.  Such insurance shall: 

 

     A. Name the City, its officials, officers, employees and 

agents as insured by endorsements with respect to performance of this Agreement.  The 

Coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its protection afforded to the 

above-listed insured. 

  

    B. Be primary with respect to any insurance or self-

insurance programs covering the City, its officials, officers, employees or agents. 

 

    C. Contain standard separation of insured provisions. 

 

   ii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance.  Business 

automobile liability insurance or equivalent form with a limit of not less than 

$1,000.000.00 each accident shall be maintained.  Such insurance shall include coverage 

for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles and shall contain the provisions set forth in 

subsection (b) above. 

 

   iii. Worker’s Compensation Insurance. Worker’s 

compensation insurance with statutory limits and employer’s liability insurance with 

limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 each accident shall be maintained. 

 

 

 

 

 

10 of 17



August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

   iv. Other Insurance Requirements.   Owner shall: 

 

    A. Prior to taking any actions under this Agreement, 

furnish City with properly executed certificates of insurance which shall be clearly 

evidence of all insurance required in this Section and provide that such insurance shall 

not be canceled, allowed to expire or be materially reduced in coverage except on thirty 

(30) days prior written notice to City. 

 

B. Provide to City/City certified copies of 

endorsements and policies if requested by the City, and properly executed certificates of 

insurance evidencing the insurance required herein. 

 

C. Replace or require the replacement of certificates, 

policies and endorsements for any insurance required herein expiring prior to completion 

and acceptance of the improvements. 

 

D. Maintain all insurance required herein from the time 

of execution of this Agreement until the acceptance of the improvements.  

 

E. Place all insurance required herein with insurers 

licensed to do business in California. 

 

 3.6 Compliance with Applicable Laws.  Owner shall insure that all work 

performed on the Sewer Improvements is performed in a manner which complies with all 

applicable federal, state, county and local government laws, regulations and rules, 

including all rules and regulations of the City and the City, as these rules and regulations 

may be modified or changed from time to time. All contractors and subcontractors 

engaged in any construction of the Sewer Improvements shall pay each respective 

employee thereof an amount not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages 

established in compliance with Section 1770 et seq of the California Labor Code and as 

determined by the Director of Industrial Relations to be effective and applicable for the 

various crafts, trades, or type of worker needed or required to construct the Sewer 

Improvements. 

 

 3.7  Contractor Licenses.  All work performed on the Sewer Improvements 

shall be done only by contractors licensed in the State of California and qualified to 

perform the type of work required and comply with the City’s Business License 

Ordinance of the City.  

 

 3.8 Acceptance of Work.   Upon completion of the Sewer Improvements to 

the satisfaction of City, the Sewer Improvements shall be presented to the City for 

dedication and acceptance and for authorization to file a Notice of Completion.  The City 

may accept the Sewer Improvements if it determines that the improvements were 

constructed in substantial accordance with the approved plans, specifications and contract 

documents that they operate satisfactorily, and that all other requirements of this 

Agreement have been satisfied.  Immediately upon, and as a condition of the expiration 

11 of 17



August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

of the guarantee period set forth in this Agreement, Owner shall assign to City all of 

Owner’s rights and remedies, including warranties, as set forth in the approved contract 

documents, to the extent assignable, and thereafter City shall have the same recourse 

under said contract documents that City would have had if City itself had engaged 

Owner’s contractor to construct the Sewer Improvements.   

 

 3.9 Liability for Work Prior to Formal Acceptance.  Until the City has 

formally accepted the Sewer Improvements, Owner shall be solely responsible for all 

damage to the work, regardless of cause, and for all damages or injuries to any person or 

property at the work site, except damage or injury due to the active negligence or willful 

misconduct of City, its elected officials, officers, employees or agents. 

 

 3.10 Guarantee.  Owner shall guarantee all work and materials for the Sewer 

Improvements to be free from all defects due to faulty materials or workmanship for a 

period of one (1) year after the date of formal acceptance of the work by City.  Owner 

shall cause to be repaired or removed and replaced and all such work, together with any 

other work, which may be displaced in so doing, this is found to be defective in 

workmanship or materials within the one (1) year period.  In the event Owner fails to 

comply with the above-mentioned provisions within thirty (30) days after being notified 

in writing (or, in cases of emergency, immediately) City shall be authorized to proceed to 

have the defects remedied and made.  Such action by City will not relieve Owner of the 

guarantee required by this section.  This section shall not, in any way, limit the liability of 

Owner or any other party for any design or construction defects in the work subsequently 

discovered by City.   

 

 3.11 Record Drawings.  Prior to acceptance of the improvements by the City, 

Owner shall provide City with one mylar copy of record drawings with certifications by a 

licensed engineer in the State of California as to accuracy and completeness.  Owner shall 

be solely responsible and liable for ensuring the completeness and accuracy of the record 

drawings. 

 

 3.12 Ownership of the Improvements.  From and after acceptance of the 

improvements by formal action of the City and payment for such improvements, 

ownership of the improvements shall be vested exclusively in City. 

 

 3.13    Abandonment of existing Sewer Easement.  Upon the completion and 

acceptance of the Sewer Improvements and the request of Owner, the City will vacate 

and abandon all rights to the existing (at the time of execution of this Agreement) sewer 

right of way on the Project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 5.1 Notice.  Any notices required or desired to be sent pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be addressed as follows: 

 

CITY: 

City Manager 

City of Colfax 

33 S. Main Street 

P.O. Box 702 

Colfax, CA  95713 

 

OWNER: 

 

Pinetop Properties, LLC, Box N 

6611 Folsom Auburn Rd 

Folsom, CA 95630 

And by email to erstauss@me.com 

 

5.2 Termination.  

 

  In the event that Owner materially defaults in the performance of any of 

its obligations under this Agreement or materially breaches any of the provisions of this 

Agreement, City shall have the option to terminate this Agreement, but only in 

accordance with following provisions.  The City shall provide written notice to Owner 

that sets forth the basis for the City’s determination that Owner has defaulted or breached 

the Agreement.  Owner shall have ten (10) days after the date of the City’s notice to 

notify the City in writing either (i) that Owner disputes the City’s allegation of a default 

or breach, or (ii) that Owner will cure the alleged default or breach, in which case Owner 

will have thirty (30) days after the date of the City’s notice to cure the default or breach. 

If Owner disputes the City’s alleged breach or default, the parties shall attempt to resolve 

the dispute in good faith through negotiation.  If the parties have not resolved the dispute 

within twenty (20) days after the City’s notice, the parties shall, on the request of either 

party, submit the disputed objections to the dispute resolution procedures set forth in this 

Agreement.  If Owner fails to timely cure any material breach or default as set forth in 

this Agreement, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement by written notice to 

Owner.  If this Agreement is terminated under this Section, such termination shall not 

relieve the City of its obligation hereunder to reimburse Owner for all of Owner’s 

Reimbursable Costs incurred by Owner through the date of termination, less any extra or 

additional costs incurred by the City to complete the Sewer Improvements over and 

above what the City would have had to pay to Owner hereunder to complete the Sewer 

Improvements in the absence of such termination. 

 

 5.3 Attorney’s Fees / Arbitration Fees.  In the event that any party hereto 

institutes any action or proceeding, including arbitration, for a declaration of the rights of 

the parties under this Agreement, for an alleged breach or default of, or any other action 

mailto:erstauss@me.com


August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

arising out of, this Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby, or in the event 

any party is in default of its obligations pursuant thereto, whether or not suit is filed or 

prosecuted to final judgment, the non-defaulting party or prevailing party shall be entitled 

to its actual attorneys' fees and to any court costs incurred, in addition to any other 

damages or relief awarded. 

 

 5.4 Dispute Resolution.   

 

                  (a) Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, 

the primary contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve 

any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following provisions.  

Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party pursuant to a written 

notice.  Within fifteen (15) days after provision of that written notice by the party desir-

ing to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall meet in person and at-

tempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, or the person acting in 

their absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall attend the meeting and shall 

be prepared to devote an entire day thereto. If any dispute remains unresolved at the end 

of the meeting, any party to this Agreement shall have the right to invoke the mediation 

process provided for in subparagraph (b) below. 

 

       (b) Subject to the provisions of subparagraph (a), any dispute that re-

mains unresolved after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-

binding neutral mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at 

the Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service (JAMS) nearest to Colfax, or 

at such other similar service that the parties may agree to. If within five (5) days after the 

meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral mediator, 

then the first available retired judge or justice at the San Francisco or Sacramento office 

of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator. The parties agree to commit to at least one 

full day to the mediation process, or two half days as may be arranged.   Additionally, to 

expedite the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree 

to each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, including 

those arbitrator’s resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within one hun-

dred and twenty (120) days after the mediation has been confirmed or as otherwise 

agreed to by the parties.. 

 

 (c) If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the 

parties shall mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their 

dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to submit se-

lection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on the parties.  In 

that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then active list of retired 

judges or justices at the San Francisco or Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration 

and Mediation Service (JAMS).  The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provi-

sions of the California Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of 

Civil Procedure.  In such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 

and 1283.1 shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

 





August 3, 2017 

 Final Draft 

 5.9 Force Majeure.  As used in this Agreement, “Force Majeure” shall mean if 

the performance of any act required by this Agreement to be performed by either party is 

prevented or delayed by reason of any act of God, any act of the other party, fire, 

earthquake, strike, lockout, labor trouble, inability to secure materials, restrictive 

governmental laws or regulations, archeological discovery on the property, or any other 

similar cause, (except financial inability) not the fault of the party required to perform the 

act, the time for performance of the act will be extended for a period equivalent to the 

period of delay and performance of the act during the period of delay will be excused. 

 

 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

 

 

BY: _____________________________________________ 

  WES HEATHCOCK, INTERIM CITY MANAGER  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

BY: _____________________________________________ 

 LORRAINE CASSIDY, CITY CLERK 

 

Owner: 

 

PINETOP PROPERTIES, LLC 

a California Limited Liability Company 

By: Monarch Mine Investments LLC, Member 

a California Limited Liability Company, 

its Manager  

 

 

BY: ____________________________________ 

 ERIC STAUSS, MANAGER 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE AUGUST 9, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, Interim City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Coastland Engineering Staff 
DATE: August 2,2017 

SUBJECT: Agreement for Geotechnical Services for the WWTP Pond 3 Embankment Failure  
 

 N/A  X REIMBURSABLE   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $35,983 FROM FUND:  560 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 33-2017 authorizing the Interim City Manager to enter into 
a consultant services agreement with Holdrege & Kull for Geotechnical Engineering Services for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 3 Embankment Failure. 

 
SUMMARY:   
On or about January 23, 2017, in the course of performing routine inspections, City of Colfax Staff discovered 
that a portion of the southwesterly bank of Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 3 had subsided and appeared to 
be failing.  The failure was discovered during a period of sustained and heavy rains.  Outward indications 
included obvious ground subsidence and a long fissure along the access road at the top of the bank. Staff 
contacted Holdrege & Kull (H&K), one of the City’s on-call geotechnical engineering firms, to provide an initial 
review and preliminary assessment of the situation on the same day.  At the conclusion of the initial review the 
City Engineer and H&K’s representative provided recommendations to the operations staff how to secure the 
site, protect the fissure from storm water intrusion as well as recommendations on monitoring further 
displacement of the slope.  The slope continued to move; however, the rate of movement diminished and by 
early March no further movement was detected. 
 
Staff contacted the Placer County Office of Emergency Services (Placer OES) who coordinated a site visit on 
January 27, 2017 including representatives from Placer OES, the State of California Office of Emergency Services 
(Cal OES), the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and City of Colfax staff.  A formal request for 
disaster assistance was submitted shortly after the site visit.  On July 14, 2017, the City was notified by Cal OES 
that the request for assistance was approved by FEMA (see Attachment).  
 
Due to the extensive displacement of the embankment, a more comprehensive investigation is required to: 
determine the potential causes of the failure; determine the extent of damage and the extent of potential 
future failures; provide recommendations to repair and prevent future damage; and estimate the costs to 
remediate the known failure and mitigate against future failures.  
 
On April 13, 2017, the City Engineer issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) solicitation to the City’s on-call 
geotechnical engineering firms. On May 4, 2017, Holdrege & Kull was the only firm to respond to the RFP 
solicitation, the proposal was reviewed by staff who concluded the firm is qualified and responsive to the RFP. 
 

ITEM 6A



2 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
professional services agreement with Holdrege & Kull for consultant services in the amount of $ 35,983 for 
geotechnical engineering services for the WWTP Pond 3 Embankment Failure.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
No impact to the general fund. The cost associated with the contract and staff time will initially come from Fund 
560 – Sewer Operations. The City may be eligible to receive reimbursement through FEMA disaster mitigation 
funding.  If it is determined the failure was due to a design or a construction related defect the City may pursue 
reimbursement of this investigation through the responsible parties.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 33-2017 
2. Letter from Cal OES Approval of Request for Public Assistance, July 14, 2017  
3. Holdrege & Kull proposal  

ITEM 6A
2 of 28



Resolution 33-2017 H&K for Geotech Services WTTP 1 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 33-2017 
 

AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH HOLDREGE & KULL FOR 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE WASTE WATER 

TREATMENT POND 3 EMBANKMENT FAILURE 
 

WHEREAS, in	 January	 2017	 the	 City	 of	 Colfax’s	 Waste	 Water Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) Pond 3 sustained damage to the southwesterly bank of the pond; and, 

 
WHEREAS, preliminary inspections of the site were performed	by	the	City,	the	City’s	

geotechnical consultant, the Placer County Office of Emergency Services (Placer OES), 
California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City applied to FEMA for public assistance for damage to Pond 3 

sustained during the January 2017 storms; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on July 14, 2017, the City was notified that its request for public 

assistance was approved by FEMA; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City requires the services of a geotechnical firm for a 

geotechnical investigation related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 3 
embankment failure; and,  

 
WHEREAS, on April 13, 2014, the City Engineer issued a Request for 

Proposal (RFP) to on-call geotechnical engineering firms; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2017, one firm responded to the ( RFP) solicitation by 

the prescribed submission deadline, the proposal was reviewed and City staff  who concluded 
that the firm was responsive to the RFP and is qualified to perform the investigation. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax, 
 

1) Authorizes the Interim City Manager to execute on behalf and in the name of the 
City of Colfax a professional services agreement with Holdrege & Kull Engineers 
and Geologists for geotechnical engineering services investigating the 
embankment failure of Pond 3 in the form attached and in an amount not to 
exceed $35,983. 

ITEM 6A
3 of 28



Resolution 33-2017 H&K for Geotech Services WTTP 2 

2) The Interim City Manager is authorized to appropriate and encumber sufficient 
funds from Fund 560-Sewer Operations to pay for the services provided for in 
said agreement. 
 

3) The Interim City Manager is authorized to submit claims for reimbursement to 
the appropriate agencies including FEMA, Cal OES and Placer County. 

 
 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 9th day of August 2017 
by the following vote of the Council: 
 
 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

 

______________________________________ 
        Stephen L. Harvey, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 6A





Technical Services Manager Travis Berry
Page 2
July 12, 2017

Failure to identify and submit PW information in accordance with these parameters may jeopardize
project funding or place additional work requirements on City of Colfax to ensure reimbursement of all
project costs. No project funding or payment is available for a PW until it is obligated.

Project Completion Deadlines
In accordance with 44 CfR section 206.204, FEMA requires all projects be completed within approved
timeframes or funding may be jeopardized. It is imperative City of Colfax submit a time extension
request for any project that will not be completed by the current approved project deadline. Further,
time extensions will only be granted by Cal OES or FEMA if City of Colfax can demonstrate
extenuating circumstances or unusual project requirements beyond its control that prevent the
successful completion of the approved scope of work by the current approved project deadline. Please
be advised FEMA and Cal OES will examine these requests closely and time extensions will only be
approved for extenuating circumstances. To assist you in determining whether your agency requires a
time extension, please refer to the following time limitations for the completion of work associated
with this disaster:

DR-4301 Emergency Work Deadlines DR-4301 Permanent Work Deadlines
(Categories A and B) (Categories C-G)

Regulatory Cal OES Time Extension Regulatory Cal OES Time Extension
Deadline Authority Deadline Authority

August 16, 2017 February 15, 201$ August 16, 2018 February 14, 2021

As delineated in the table above, Cal OES is able to grant time extensions through February 15,
201$, for emergency work, and February 14, 2021, for permanent work. FEMA must approve time
extensions for any project that will be completed after these dates. Time extension requests must
include the extenuating circumstances causing the delay, the PW number, category of work, a
construction schedule, an estimated project completion date, as well as dates and provision of
previously approved time extensions. Time extension requests should be submitted to Cal OES prior
to the established deadline.

Compliance with Federal, State, and Local Environmental and Historical Laws
Initiating a project prior to FEMA’s review for compliance with Federal environmental and historic
laws and executive orders may result in jeopardizing funding. FEMA will complete any required
documentation and interagency consultations. City of Colfax must obtain all necessary permits
required for all projects, and must comply with any federal, state or local environmental and historic
laws or permit requirements.

Change in Scope of Work or Additional Funding
Any change to the scope of work and/or significant increase in project funding must be requested in
writing through Cal OES. A version to the original PW will be prepared by Cal OES based on the
eligible work in the documentation provided with the request. The draft PW will be transmitted by
Cal OES to FEMA for approval. It is imperative subrecipients wait for FEMA’s approval before

ITEM 6A









mailto:tkinson@HandK.net


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
Firm Overview .................................. 1 

Approach and Scope of Work .............. 2 

Relevant Projects .............................. 6 

Appendix (Resumes) 

ITEM 6A



http://www.holdregeandkull.com/






Proposal to Provide Geotechnical Investigation for 
City of Colfax WWTP Pond 3 Embankment Failure 

4 May 4, 2017 (Revised July 28, 2017) 

 

 

determined and detailed during the development of the site investigation plan. It is anticipated that 
subsurface investigations will include exploratory trenches as a means of accumulating high quality 
data. It is anticipated that up to five exploratory trenches could be utilized to collect the data 
required. Depending on the subsurface soil and rock conditions encountered, H&K anticipates that 
laboratory testing of soil and rock samples will include: classification of soils, direct shear testing, 
Atterberg Limits, moisture-density determinations, and unconfined compression tests. Survey work 
will be performed to determine the location of the toe for comparison with as-built documents. The 
geotechnical work plan will be developed in order to 
facilitate the collection of necessary data and samples in order to evaluate the slope failure, as well 
as, to determine existing conditions that may have contributed to the failure. 

 

In accordance with the geotechnical work plan developed during Task 3, H&K will coordinate 
the necessary equipment and permits to complete the subsurface investigation. During the 
investigation, it is anticipated that H&K will observe the excavation of five exploratory trenches 
to depths of 10-feet below the current access road grade. An H&K staff engineer or geologist will log 
the trenches borings 
in the field. During the exploratory trenching, the trenches will be sampled in an attempt to identify 
the slide plane. The relatively undisturbed soil and rock samples will be logged and collected for 
future evaluation and testing.  
 

As currently proposed, soil and rock samples collected from field investigation will be delivered and 
stored at the H&K laboratory pending testing. If laboratory testing is requested, H&K anticipates 
that the scope of the work will include direct shear testing, Atterberg limits, moisture-density 
determinations, and unconfined compression tests. Shear and unconfined compression test 
results will be used to determine the internal friction and cohesion properties of the soil and rock 
encountered. Moisture-density determinations will be used to estimate the in-place moisture 
content and density of the soil and rock. If laboratory testing is performed, the results will be used 
to facilitate slope stability testing and the future evaluations of landslide stabilization and repair 
schemes. 

 
H&K will utilize the subsurface exploration, soil sampling, and laboratory testing to prepare an 
engineering report documenting the site conditions and soil parameters, data, borings, and 
laboratory testing completed. 

 
H&K will rely on Coastland Engineering’s subconsultants, Dundas Geomatics, to perform 
topographic surveying and mapping to describe the slope and basin geometry of the failed area in 
the attempt to determine any changes in the geometry of the slopes below the water line. This 
information would be used to identify any bulging of the existing slopes or basin that would 
indicate a rotational or translational slope failure. This data along with the laboratory testing would 
allow us to perform slope stability analysis. 

Perform In-place Subsurface Geotechnical Exploration Task 4 

ITEM 6A



Proposal to Provide Geotechnical Investigation for 
City of Colfax WWTP Pond 3 Embankment Failure 

5 May 4, 2017 (Revised July 28, 2017) 

 

 

 

H&K will prepare a report presenting our findings, conclusions, and recommendations based on the 
information collected during Tasks 1 through 4. H&K’s report will include a description of the field 
work, the equipment used, personnel, and samples collected. H&K anticipates that the findings 
will include descriptions of the soil and rock conditions encountered, landslide characteristics, and 
slope stability testing. Boring logs and laboratory test results will also be included. The conclusions 
will include a description of the mechanics of the slide, estimated depth of failure, and potential for 
repair of the slide. 

 

During work associated with Task 6, H&K anticipates to work closely with City of Colfax to review 
options for slope failure remediation based on the conclusions reported in Task 5. Following the 
review and discussions of options with the City of Colfax, H&K anticipates to prepare documents 
necessary for the implementation of the recommendations. H&K will prepare appropriate drawings 
to the level of remediation agreed upon for review and comment by the City of Colfax with final 
drawings prepared incorporating comments. 

 

Based on the agreed upon the remediation plan, H&K will prepare a letter   report 
providing an estimate of preliminary quantities, in addition to cost estimates of probable 
construction work to repair the WWTP Pond 3  Liner. 

 

H&K is fully prepared to augment the City of Colfax during the remediation phase of this 
project. We anticipate that this augmentation of the city staff may involve either a full-time or part-
time commitment of H&K staff to support the geotechnical testing and observation requirements. 

 

Schedule 

H&K’s proposed work schedule is based on our present and expected workload. H&K is prepared 
to commence work on this project following receipt of a signed contract and notice to proceed. 
H&K assumes that with a timely turnaround of the contract and notice to proceed, the subsurface 
investigation can be performed within four weeks, weather permitting. H&K estimates that the 
final report will be completed within five weeks following completion of the field activities. 

 
The time required to complete our geological investigation field work may be increased as a result 
of encountering unforeseen subsurface conditions, adverse weather conditions, soil stability, 
property access problems, or scheduling of exploratory equipment. 

Provide Recommendations to Remediate Slope Failure Task 6 

Provide Estimate of Quantities and Cost Task 7 

Provide Construction Phase Services Task 8 

Provide an Opinion on Causes of Slope Failure 
 

Task 6 

ITEM 6A





Proposal to Provide Geotechnical Investigation for 
City of Colfax WWTP Pond 3 Embankment Failure 

7 May 4, 2017 (Revised July 28, 2017) 

 

 

Reference 

Jessica Cain 
City of Colusa Dept. of Public Works 

530-458-4740 

 

Colusa Wastewater Plant and Pipeline Improvements, Colusa, CA 
Holdrege & Kull completed a geotechnical 
engineering investigation for the City 
of Colusa for improvements to the 
existing wastewater treatment system. 
The improvements included a new 55 
foot diameter by 22 foot deep below- 
ground clarifier tank at the wastewater 
treatment plant; a new 26 foot deep 
pump lift station on an existing sewer 
collector pipeline; replacement of 
approximately 15,000 linear feet of 
sewer pipeline; and design of perimeter 
earth berms and liner system for a 20- 
acre wastewater treatment pond. 

The subsurface investigation entailed drilling 
and sampling 18 exploratory borings along the 
sewer pipeline alignment to a maximum depth 
of 20 feet, drilling one exploratory boring 
each at the clarifier tank and pump lift station 
to maximum depths of 50 feet, and drilling 
five exploratory borings at the treatment pond to a maximum depth of 20 feet. Drilling along the 
sewer pipeline alignment was performed on two-lane city residential and commercial streets, which 
required use of traffic controls to close off one lane. H&K characterized the soil and groundwater 
conditions at each exploratory boring location using field and laboratory test methods. 

H&K’s engineering design services included estimates of seismic liquefaction induced settlements, 
foundation designs, and earthwork recommendations for the clarifier tank and pump lift station; 
sewer trench backfill recommendations; soil corrosion potential for structural design of the sewer 
pipeline; slope stability analysis of the wastewater treatment pond perimeter berms; and in situ 
permeability testing of the native soil exposed in the bottom of the wastewater treatment pond. 
H&K completed the project on-time and within budget. 

 
 

Project Owner: City of Colusa 

Project Duration: March 2015 - June 2015 

H&K Fee: $60,000 

Services Provided: 

H&K Staff Involved: Don Olsen and Chad Borean 

 Earthwork recommendations 

 Foundation design 

 Sewer pipeline trench design 

 Seismic liquefaction analysis 

ITEM 6A



Proposal to Provide Geotechnical Investigation for 
City of Colfax WWTP Pond 3 Embankment Failure 

8 May 4, 2017 (Revised July 28, 2017) 

 

 

 

Colfax 3 Pond Liner, Colfax, CA 
A pre-fabricated, high-density, 
polyethylene (HDPE) liner, or Hypalon 
geomembrane, was installed as part 
of the upgrade to the 69-million-gallon 
Pond 3 storage reservoir. Pond 3 is 
approximately 9.7 acres in plan area and 
is located along the southern portion of 
the Colfax Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
It consists of an earth fill dam, spillway, 
outlet piping, and overflow alarm level 
device. 

H&K performed a limited subsurface 
investigation at the northeast section 
of Pond 3 that included observation, 
documentation, and evaluation of the seepage 
occurring at the site. The investigation 
involved the upper 10 feet of soil. H&K 
prepared a limited-scope geotechnical report 
and provided design recommendations for 
subdrains. 

H&K also provided one full-time engineering technician during construction. Scope of services 
included: 

• Continuous field moisture/density testing during construction of the embankment fills. 
 

• Periodic field moisture/density testing during construction of the 1:12 access ramp, 
 subgrade for the perimeter access road, and subgrade for the liner. 

• Laboratory testing to support the materials testing being completed in the field. 
 

• Preparation of field and/or laboratory reports detailing the results of testing performed. 
 
 
 

Project Owner: City of Colfax 

Project Duration: Aug. 2012 - Oct. 2012 

H&K Fee: $44,300 (Construction cost: $2M) 

Services Provided: 

 Geotechnical investigation 

 Materials testing and inspection 

H&K Staff Involved: John Atkinson, Bob Stiles 

Reference 

Ken Stram 
PSOMAS 

916-788-8122 

ITEM 6A




















	00A 170809  Agenda
	03A 170726 Minutes
	03B Sierra Oaks Reimbursement
	170809 SR Sierra Oaks Reimbursement Fees final
	Resolution 32-2017 Sierra Oaks Reimbursement
	170803 Sierra Oaks Reimbursement Final

	06A HK Geotech WWTP Pond 3
	170809 SR HK Geotech WWTP Pond 3doc
	Resolution 33-2017 HK Geo for WWTP pond levees docx
	FEMA Letter July 14 2017
	PL17068 Colfax WWTP Pond 3, H&K Resubmittal (revised 7-28-17)
	Fee Proposal




